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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISS!ON

SEC FORM 17-Q "

|
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2022 I‘

2. Commission identification number 13174 ‘

3. BIR tax identification number 000-108-278-000 "

|
4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter ‘

LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION

|

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organi;ation
PASIG CITY, METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES \
6. Industry Classification Code: (SEC use only) ‘,

\
7. Address of registrant's principal office '

26F WEST TOWER, PSE CENTRE, EXCHANGE ROAD, ORTIGAS CENTER, PASIG CITY

8. lIssuer's telephone number, including area code "
+632 8637-5291 to 93

Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed snnce last report
NOT APPLICABLE

|
10. Securities registered pursuant to Section 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
Number of shares of commdn
stock outstanding and amount of
debt outstanding

Title of each class

2,444 .106,666/NA |
0/N/A

Common
Preferred

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange? ‘
|
Yes [/] No [1

|
12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

a.) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of thé Code and SRC Rule 17 there
under or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thare under, and Sections 26 and
141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the| \preceding twelve (12) months
(or for such shorter period the registrant was required to fi Ie1 such reports).

Yes [/] No [] |
|

b.) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninbty (90) days.

\
Yes [/] No [] '



|
PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

|
Item 1. Financial Statements \

Please see attached. ‘I

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finaﬁcial Condition and Results of
Operations \

OVERVIEW ‘.

LRWC is functioning as a holding company with minimal operatibns. The Company is focusing its
endeavor in supporting the productivity programs of its subsidiaries as grouped in the following
segments: CASINO (1) Prime Investment Korea, Inc. (PIKI - 100% |owned), (2) Blue Chip Gaming and
Leisure Corporation (BCGLC - 100% owned), (3) Gold Coast Leigure World Corp. (GCLWC - 100%
owned); ONLINE (4) First Cagayan Leisure and Resort Corporation (FCLRC - 69.68% owned), (5) LR
Data Center and Solutions, Inc. (LRDCSI - 80% owned), (6) First Cagayan Converge Data Center Inc.
(FCCDCI - 60%); RETAIL (7) AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. (ABLE - ﬁm% owned), (8) Total Gamezone
Xtreme, Inc. (TGXI - 100% owned); and PROPERTY (9) AB Leisure Global, Inc. (ABLGI - 100% owned),
(10) LR Land Developers, Inc. (LRLDI - 100% owned), (11) G-L Real Estate JV Corporation. (GREJC
— 100% owned). '\

|
On September 21, 2021, 26,606,666 warrant holders have exercised their conversion privileges at an
exercise price of #1.503. The equivalent common shares were issued on the same date.

|
On March 07, 2022, Board of Directors approved a private plaoerhent on the Company's unissued

capital stock of 1,272,352,512 common shares at an issue price of Php1.65 per share, which shall raise
a total of Php2,099,381,645. '

|
The funds raised will be used for developing the Company’s online platform aiming to provide its clients
new and better gaming experience. Furthermore, part of the funds! will also be used to finance the

operational and capital expenditures of the company, and to lower dc#wn the Company's overall debts
by paying off some of the loans. \

As one of the leading icons of the industry, LRWC is aggressive in inﬁovations and improvement of its
products and services. One of the most recent notable achievements/would be BingoPlus. Itis the first
platform in the country which offers online traditional Bingo (OTB). Th%/online platform, bingoplus.com,
was launched in January 2022 and had quickly become a community ‘avon'te.

PIKI ‘l

PIKI is engaged in the business of gaming, recreation, leisure and lease of property. Together with
Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR), PIKI e)ﬁecuted a Junket Agreement to
jointly conduct junket gaming operations within PAGCOR's Casino Filipino-Midas located at Midas Hotel
and Casino in Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City. On November 11, 2021, F’IKI ceased its operations.

|
BCGLC and GCLWC ‘

BCGLC and GCLWC are engaged in operates Slot Arcades under a licknse issued by the PAGCOR.




|
FCLRC ‘

|
The Cagayan Economic Zone Authority (CEZA), mandated by law to manage Cagayan Special

Economic Zone and Free Port (CSEZFP), has authorized FCLRC to license, regulate and supervise
the operations of registered online gaming enterprise in CSEZFP. FCLRC, on behalf of CEZA, can
issue two types of licenses: (1) E-casino licenses which will cover all types of online gaming including
casinos, lotteries, bingo and sportsbook; and (2) Sportsbetting ﬁcenses which limit the offerings to
sports betting only. As the master licensor, FCLRC is entitled to half of the gaming levy imposed by
CEZA on the gaming operators in the CSEZFP. \

|

\

FCLRC owns 60% of the outstanding capital stock of FCCDCI. |
|

LRDCSI \
LRDCSI is a technology company engaged in aggregating data{ and telecommunication services.
LRDCSI's revenue model involves acquiring services from local and foreign technology and
telecommunication companies at wholesale rates, bundling said services and then reselling the
services at retail rates. .

|

|
The premium for such activity is warranted given the bespoke and higher level of customer engagement
provided by LRDCSI. LRDCSI’s portfolio includes solutions related to data center co-location, Internet,
private leased lines, mobile and video platforms, cybersecurity, conteht delivery networks, e-commerce,
and network and website optimization. LRDCSI aims to provide these services to customers and clients
in the industry sectors including land based and online gaming operators. LRWC owns 80% of the
outstanding capital of LRDCSI while one of the incorporators owns the remaining 20%.

LRDCSI owns 20% of the outstanding capital stock of FCCDCI. '

FCCDCI ‘
FCLRC, LRDCSI and IP Ventures, Inc. (IPVI) formed a joint venture corporation with the name First
Cagayan Converge Data Center Inc. to engage in the business of information technology such as IP
communication, co-location, bandwidth, disaster recovery services,"software development, internet
merchant payment processing and payment solution, premium dial|up access, voice over internet
protocol, IP-wide area network services and other value-added services. Presently, FCCDCI provides
a range of services to Internet Gaming Operators at the CSEZFP for a fee.

ABLE l
ABLE (popularly known as Bingo Bonanza Corporation), is the pioneer in professional bingo gaming in
the Philippines. PAGCOR granted ABLE and its subsidiaries the authority to operate bingo games
pursuant to P.D. 1869. Since then, bingo outlets of ABLE and its subsidiaries have become community
and entertainment centers, a source of revenue for the government, bnd a sponsor for fund-raising
activities relating to social and educational programs.

|
As of December 31, 2021, ABLE had 132 sites, of which 112 were operational sites, while 18 sites
remained temporary closed mainly due to stricter quarantine classiﬁcatjc‘Tns and LGU executive orders,
and 2 sites were temporarily closed while waiting for relocation. ‘.

|
During the first quarter of 2022, ABLE closed additional 3 sites. This brpught site count down to 130,
of which 117 were operational sites, 12 sites remained temporarilyﬂcfosed, and 1 site awaiting
relocation.

TGXI j
TGXI is engaged in operates e-games stations under licensee of PAGCO’B.

|
As of December 31, 2021, TGXI had 31 sites, of which 27 were operationql sites, while 2 sites were still
temporarily closed due to still-strict quarantine regulations and LGU execqtive orders, and 2 sites were
temporarily closed while waiting for relocation. ‘



During the first quarter of 2022, the operational site count increased to 28, while 1 site remained
temporarily closed and 2 sites are due for relocation.

\
ABLGI

\
ABLGI acquired a building in Manila as investment property and c*:llect rental income.
\
GREJC

|

GREJC \
GREJC acquired 23 hectares of land property in Boracay for future project. LRWC as Surety and signed
an Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (OLSA) for £2,500,000,000.00 with BDO Unibank, Inc. -
Trust and Investment Group as Security Trustee and the Company since October 2017.
\

|
|
LRLDI

LRLDI entered into various lease agreements as lessor with lease
(5) years.

|
|
rerms ranging from monthly to five

LRLDI is also committed in supporting the development of Cagayan Special Economic Zone and Free
Port (CSEZFP). In executing an agreement with Cagayan Premium Ventures Development Corporation
(CPVDC) and Cagayan Land Property Development Corporation (CLPDC), LRLDI has established its
support by investing funds into the Lal-Lo Airport Project, Cagayan Economic Zone and Freeport
(CEZFP) International Airport Project, and other facilities within the (CSEZFP. These projects aim to
improve and further advance CSEZFP into a self-sustaining industrial zone.

|

LRLDI has significant land properties in Cagayan which are carried a*
W

|

fair value.



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,
AS COMPARED WITH MARCH 31, 2021

GROSS PROFIT

2 3 |
Breakdown of gross revenues, other revenues and its related d:reqt costs are as follows:

(In thousands)

For the three montl“{s ended March 31

2022 2021 I‘| Change % Change
CASINO ‘.
Casino gaming revenues 66,345 59,93:{ 6,412 10.70%
66,345 59,933 6412  10.70%
NETWORK AND LICENSE i\
Service and hosting fees 56,131 87,780 I‘I (31,649) -36.05%
Bandwidth and co-location 38,240 86,395 | (48,155)  -55.74%
94,371 174,175 | (79,804)  -45.82%
RETAIL {
589,922 607,558 I‘I (17,636) -2.90%
Traditional bingo 1,199 -l 1,199 N/A
Electronic games 94,193 47,022 || 47171 100.32%
Online Gaming 48,607 - || 48,607 N/A
Rapid bingo 17,901 41,744 |‘| (23,843)  -57.12%
Pull tabs 58 2,741 || (2,683) -97.88%
751,880 699,064 | 52,816 7.56%
PROPERTY I‘.
Rent income 16,418 9181 || 7237  78.82%
Total gross gaming revenues 929,014 942 353 I‘.(1 3,339) -1.42%
Franchise fees and taxes (632,466) (488,074) (?44,392) 29.58%
Payout tax (21,606) (18,732) || (2,874) 15.34%
Costs of bandwidth and co-location  (37,611) (52,906) |‘ 15,295 -28.91%
Site Rental (85,139) (91,524) | 6,385 -6.98%
Utilities & Communication (53,661) (47,033) l\|(6,628) 14.09%
Contract Agent (38,486) (57,921) 119,435 -33.55%
Advertising & Promotion (17,872) (3,442) (74,430) 419.24%
Repair & Maintenance (9,830) (2,982) (6,848) 229.69%
Other direct costs (6,127) (3.533)  (2594)  73.40%
Total direct costs (902,798) (766,147) (136,651) 17.84%
Gross profit 26,216 176,206 1#3,312 69.98%

Consolidated Gross Profit

|
|
|

For the three months of Q1 2022, consolidated Gross Profit recorded a sighificant decrease by 69.98%
to P26.22 million compared to previous year's Q1 results. This was pulled down by the significant

decline in the revenues from Online segment and increase on PAGCOR shqre from new Retail business
Online traditional bingo.



|
Casino ‘

BCGLC and GCLWC (Casino gaming revenues) revenue recordt

£66.35 million compared to previous year's Q1 results. It is due
sites’ operating hours.

a significant increase by 10.70% to
increase in operating capacity and

Online |

FCLRC (Service and hosting fees) revenue recorded a significant df
compared to previous year's Q1 results. The decline was att
Licensees and lower revenues reported by existing licensees.

crease by 36.05% to 56.13 million
butable to non-renewal of CEZA

FCCDCI and LRDCSI (Bandwidth and co-location revenue) revenpe recorded a significant decrease

by 55.74% to P38.24 million compared to previous year's Q1 results This decline was primarily due to
terminations of locators change business locations or discontinue therr operations.

Retail |

ABLE and its subsidiaries and TGXI recorded a slight increase by 7 56% to #751.88 million compared
to previous year's Q1 result.

As of March 31, 2022, there were 145 sites in operations with full capacity. Retail group already
prepared and submitted strategic return-to-work guidelines. Sites were disinfected, physical distancing
markers were set-up, safety materials and reminder posters were procured and installed in the
branches, and employees were trained on the new SOPs aimed to r duce COVID-19 transmission.

|
In July 2021, TGXI received a new PAGCOR license to start a new online business product “Electronic
gaming System (EGS)" to replace Electronic games. Previously TGXI earned 29% gross gaming

revenue (GGR) from IEST a gaming platform provider and now TGXI generated GGR 52.50% after
PAGCOR share.

In January 2022, ABLE received a new PAGCOR license to start a new online business product “Online
traditional bingo (OTB)" and recorded double digit growth on GGR from January 2022 £3.80 million to
March 2022 P30.65 million. Although the GGR level has not reached PAGCOR Minimum guarantee
fee (MGF) that affecting gross profit, the management has confi dencel that profit margin will gradually
improve due to popularly of bingo game and increased players'’ actwityj

Property

ABLGI (Rental income) revenue remains stable compared to previous years Q1 result. The revenue
generated from the lease of Binondo Suites was approximately 2.10 miillion per quarter.

|
LRLDI (Rental income) revenue recorded an increase by 78.82% to P14.35 million compared to

previous year's Q1 result. This was mainly due to an increase in month’aa

rent rate and there were new
customers from its lease of Cyberpark Buildings 1 and 2 and Techhub Makati.



OPERATING EXPENSES ‘l
Breakdown of operating expenses are as follows: ‘

(In thousands) For the three months ende#j March 31
2022 2021 Change ‘I % Change
People expenses 106,061 85314 20,747 24.32%
Rentals 5897 5625 272  4.83%
Utilities & Communication 1,087 4178  (3,091) " -73.98%
Repair & Maintenance 955 1,900 (945) I‘ -49.74%
Contract Agent 2,350 2,751 (402) | -14.60%
Taxes and licenses 12,550 28,577 (16,027) ‘| -56.08%
Professional and directors’ fees 2,764 6,113 (3,349) ‘I -54 79%
Travel and transportation 1,692 1,023 668 | 65.29%
Others 43,913 27420 16,493 " 60.15%
177,268 162,902 14,366 | 8.82%

\

|

Overall operating expenses recorded an increase by 8.82% to ?17{7.27 million compared to previous
year's Q1 result. This was due to significant increases in manpower and retail expenses for re-opening
of sites from casino segment and retail segment offset by lower tax?s and licenses expenses.

CONSOLIDATED NET LOSS '
Net loss details as follows: ‘

(In thousands) For the three montﬂs ended March 31
2022 2021 _\PChange % Change
Gross gaming revenues 929,014 942,353 |(13,339) -1.42%
Direct costs (902,798) (766,147) (136.,651) 17.84%
26216 176206 (149.990)  -85.12%
Operating expenses (177,268) (162,902) \1(14,366) 8.82%
*EBITDA (151,052) 13,304 (164,356) -1235.38%
|
Depreciation and amortization (49,854) (58,092) || 8238  -14.18%
Income Tax 0 (1,309) || 1,309 -100.00%
Other income (expenses) - net (22,165)  (63,937) ‘I 41,773 -65.33%
Neflioaa affer tax (223,071) (110,035) (1113,036) 102.73%
Minority interest 679  (15,573) 11 6,252 -104.36%

Net loss attributable to Parent Company (222,392) (125,608) (?6’784) 77.05%

\
*EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, #mortization, and non-recurring
expense such as impairment loss. The Group evaluates performance based on contributions to
EBITDA, which is not a measure of operating performance or liquidity defined by PFRSs and may not

be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other entities. '\

The Group consolidated net loss (net of minority share) recorded a si Inifit:ant increase by 77.05% to
P223.39 million compared to previous year's Q1 result. This was due togFigniﬁcant decrease in revenue
from online segment and increase of direct cost for minimum guarantep fee (MGF) to PAGCOR from
OTB business and increase in manpower due to re-opening of sites from casino segment and retail
segment. |




\
|
Financial Condition — March 31, 2022 vs. December 31, 2021\|

On a consolidated basis, the financial position of LRWC and ité subsidiaries continue to be on solid
ground. ‘,
|

Total assets as of March 31, 2022 amounted to P18.78 billion, an\increase of 0.19 billion or 1.02% as
compared to last year's balance of #18.59 billion. |‘

|
The total liabilities as of March 31, 2022 amounted to 9.34 billion,|an increase of 20.43 billion or 4.83%
as compared to last year's balance of £8.91 billion. "

Cash Flows — Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 vs. March ?1, 2021

Cash balance as of March 31, 2022 amounted to #206.66 million, E decrease from March 31, 2021 by
£89.89 miillion or 30.31% mainly due to advance to HEPI for th# payment of loan offset by private
placement. i

Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and Uncertainties Knov}bn to Management

The Management of LRWC and Subsidiaries is not aware of any méterial events/and uncertainties that
would address the past and would have impact on future operationé‘ of the following:

|

1. Any trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertair‘ties that will have a material impact
on LRWC's liquidity; ‘

2. Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obil’ﬁgation;

3. Any material off-balance sheet transactions, arrar"gements. obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships with \unconso!idated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period;

4. Any material commitments for capital expenditures,k the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures;

5. Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected

to have a material favorable impact on net saleslrei‘venues/income from continuing

operations; |

6. Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from LRWC continuing
operations; '

7. Any seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the *’lnanciai condition and results of
operations. ‘

PLANS FOR 2022 \

RETAIL |

In 2021 until the beginning of 2022, the Retail Group remained headstrpng towards embracing change
and setting the business on a path of growth and innovation. Our teams successfully started pivoting
our business and gaining new revenue streams via digital transformatiqn (e.g., online games). We also
kept our organic (land-based) revenue streams protected through|effective marketing activities,
resumption of more sites, and extension of operating hours. Both the ne}N and organic revenue streams
are on an uptrend. At the same time, we continued to achieve operational efficiencies by streamlining
processes as well as reskilling our human capital to ensure an agile and dynamic workforce. We also
remained true to our commitment to reduce our debts through restructuring, as well as optimized our
costs at branch level, including negotiating for rent concessions. We continued to improve our relations
with our vendors to rally for their support of our growth and innovation plans.

|

For the remainder of 2022, we will remain steadfast in pushing our online products which are seen to
be the “blue ocean” (defined by Investopedia as “new market with little competition or barriers standing
in the way of innovators”. In other words, “a vast empty ocean of market options and opportunities that
occur when a new or unknown industry or innovation appears”). We will be aggressive in the pursuit of
player registrations, deposits, and gaming transactions. As the online p?oducts can also be played in

-9- |



|
our branches, we shall continue upgrading our network ccmnectiI ity and hardware. We will also push
for more games availability and variety. With these efforts, we see steep revenue growth in our newly
launched and yet-to-be-launched online products. These are our new engines of growth and our vehicle
to addressing changing consumer trends driven by the pandech. Thus, with these innovations, we
expect this year to be a recovery year alongside projected increase in household incomes and foot
traffic and decrease in COVID-19 cases and quarantines. Due to the aforementioned market trends and
also expected more site resumptions, our outlook includes an increase in branch (land-based) revenues
as well. We plan to leverage on this by reigniting customer relations and acquiring new customers. We
shall also remain cost-efficient to protect our margins. .
We shall continue to support our employees, customers, suppliersL and communities while shifting our
focus towards innovation, profit maximization and cost mitigation measures in our operations. Hopefully,
when the time is right, we may then re-visit our expansion plans which were previously in the pipeline
prior to COVID-19. ‘

CASINO |
Product Improvement ‘
Product improvement is the process of making meaningful prdduct changes that result in new
customers or increased benefits realized by existing customers. B'pGLC will replace the existing old
model of EGM and ETG to the latest models available. |

|
At the same time, BCGLC will also replace the non-performing EGI\# such with those games that have
proven its performance in major casinos in the Philippines in order t{) maximize the gaming revenue.

|
Marketing and Promotion \
BCGLC marketing plan in 2022 will be based on the following: (1) F’rlpduct - increase the game mix; (2)
Price - various denomination games installed in each club to atiract all level of players; and (3)
Promotion - intense marketing activities will be held on a weekly, monthly and quarterly basis.

|
Club Enhancement "
Transform the traditional PAGCOR VIP Club to a boutique style casing which allows customers to enjoy
their playing time in a quiet and cozy gaming room.

Safety Protocol "
BCGLC VIP Clubs care for the safety and hygiene of its customers, as continuous sanitation and
hygiene is being done routinely in every part of the club areas. BCGLq aims to safeguard player health
and safety while spend their time in the VIP Clubs. \

ONLINE/PROPERTY ‘

Following the clarification of the government's position regarding the ii&pnsing and regulation of entities
involved in online gaming operations and ancillary support services through the issuance of Executive
Order 13 in February 2017, FCLRC initiated efforts to put in place the critical elements that are
necessary for the CSEZFP to regain its historical status of being the pr*amier online gaming jurisdiction
in Asia. Specifically, FCLRC has identified and taken steps to address Ithe following:

Accessibility ‘I

FCLRC has determined that the main gateway to the CSEZFP will be through the Cagayan North
International Airport (CNIA) located in the municipality of Lal-lo, approximately 80 kilometers southwest
of FCLRC's business operations in Santa Ana. LRWC, through its wholly-owned subsidiary LR Land,
funded over 50% of the development cost of CNIA through advances |to airport owner and operator
Cagayan Premium and may convert such advances into majority equity id the airport owner in the future.
CEZA provided the other 50% funding for CNIA. \I

|
In 2018, a chartered airline servicing one of the locators in Santa Ana successfully launched its maiden
flight between Macau and Lal-lo. The chartered airline now flies two rmhd trips a week from Lal-lo to
Macau. Also, in 2018, consultants were engaged to assist Cagayan Premiium to obtain the authorization
from the CAAP for CNIA to operate as a commercial airport. Once the pandemic is over, it is expected
that with the appointment of trained airport personnel, planned upgradP of the passenger terminal,

|

-10 - |



procurement of ground handling equipment and installation of na*igational systems, CNIA will finally be
able to operate as a fully-functional commercial airport. \

[
Master-planned Business Park \
Initially focusing on its leased 10-hectare property in Santa Ana (Cyberpark) for development, FCLRC
is expanding its plans to cover a significantly larger area beyond Cyberpark. In doing so, FCLRC can

properly envision and execute a master-planned development that incorporates office, residential and
retail commercial buildings as well as recreational areas into a ielf—contained community catering to
online gaming and financial technology companies. FCLRC expects actual master-planning work to
commence late in the second half of 2022. Horizontal land develop[fment preparatory work should begin
shortly after.

|
Licenses |

To provide the appropriate regulatory environment to its infrastz?c

tural development plans, FCLRC
successfully renewed its master licensor from CEZA in 2017. In addition, FCLRC was also awarded by

CEZA a land-based casino license in CSEZFP in late 2018. For 2020, FCLRC is angling to obtain a

principal financial technology license and explore opportunities involving blockchain technology and
cryptocurrency. |‘

I
FCCDCI has built a robust network data network infrastructure in‘#Cagayan that has direct access to

Hong Kong and Manila. The data infrastructure provides low latency bandwidth that's integral to online
gaming operations. The same data infrastructure is connected to multiple nodes across Asia, thereby
allowing online enterprises to efficiently reach their target markets.

i |



|

PART Il - OTHER INFORMAY\ION

There is no significant information that needs to be reported undfer this section not previously reported
in a report on SEC Form 17-C. \
|

\
|
SIGNATURES \

\
Pursuant to the requirements of the Revised Securities Act, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authgrized

\
Registrant: LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION ||
\

|
Slgnature nd Tntle SUI KIN MING, President

Date:
L Qo2 |

Signature and Title:

. Cortes, Treasurer '
Date:
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LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAU| POSITION

: | March 31, December 31,
(Amounts in thousands) Note 2022 2021
ASSETS |
Current Assets ‘I
Cash ; P206,794 P416,524
Receivables — net 956,279 924,490
Current portion of lease receivables 2,353 2,353
Due from related parties 14 157,156 157,156
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6 169,090 112,899
Total Current Assets | 1,491,672 1,613,422
Noncurrent Assets ‘,
Lease receivable - net of current portion 7 15,878 15,878
Receivables - net of current portion , 452,053 452,053
Property and equipment - net 7 1,164,595 1,191,770
Investment properties 8| 10,644,781 10,644,781
Investments and advances g 2,558,733 2,227 375
U e v ot o mem s
Goodwill 13| 1,329,092 1,329,092
Other noncurrent assets - net 10| 1,065,800 1,066,777
Total Noncurrent Assets \ 17,284,514 16,981,308
Total Assets | P18,776,186 P18,594,730
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ‘
Current Liabilities '
Trade and other payables 12 | £1,918,469 P1,633,896
Short-term loans payable 11 || 1,080,395 1,057,607
Current portion of:
Long-term loans payable 11 576,624 622,532
Lease liabilities 214,983 214 983
Income tax payable _ 3,116 3,116
Total Current Liabilities ] 3,793,587 3,532,134
Noncurrent Liabilities .
Long-term loans payable - net of current portion 11 2,785,504 2,785,504
Lease liabilities - net of current portion 436,929 436,929
Deposit for future stock subscriptions 471,250 321,250
Retirement benefits liability ' 132,269 132,269
Deposits | 81,547 88,473
Deferred tax liabilities 1,613,602 1,613,602
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,521,101 5,378,027
Total Liabilities il £9,314,688 $8,910,161

(Forward)

-18 =



LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAHT POSITION

(Amounts in thousands)

Notlp March 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Equity ‘
Equity Attributable to the Parent Company |
Capital stock . P4,094,107 P4,094,107
Additional paid-in capital - common \ 4,276,691 4 276,691
Treasury shares . (1,703,951) (1,703,951)
Retirement benefits reserve * 24,244 24,244
Fair value reserve ' (52,546) (52,546)
Foreign currency translation reserve . (2,100) (2,100)
Other reserve ‘ (19,488) (19,488)
Retained earnings | 2,503,917 2,726,309
‘ 9,137,874 9,343,266
Non-controlling Interests ' 340,624 341,303
Total Equity | 9,461,498 9,684,569
Total Liabilities and Equity . P18,776,186 18,594,730
|
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|

LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREH¢NSIVE INCOME

| Period Ended Mach 31

T

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

| 2022 2021
|
REVENUES "
Electronic bingo ' 589,922 607,558
Online games ‘I 48,607 0
Traditional bingo ‘ 1,199 0
Service and hosting fees ' 56,131 87,780
Bandwidth and co-location ‘I 38,240 86,395
Casino gaming revenues ‘ 66,345 59,933
Electronic games ‘ 94,193 47,022
Rapid bingo ' 17,901 41,744
Pull tabs . 58 2,741
Rental income \ 16,418 9,181
1 929,014 942,353
COSTS AND OPERATING EXPENSES .
Franchise fees and taxes ‘I (632,466) (488,074)
Payouts tax ‘ (21,606) (18,732)
Salaries and other benefits " (106,061) (85,314)
Rent , (91,035) (97,149)
Contracted services ‘ (40,835) (60,673)
Bandwidth and co-location costs i (37,612) (52,906)
Communications and utilities (54,748) (51,211)
Advertising and promotion (17,989) (3,442)
Taxes and licenses ‘ (12,550) (28,577)
Professional and directors’ fees ' (2,764) (6,113)
Representation and entertainment ‘ (38,021) (23,026)
Transportation and travel \ (1,692) (1,023)
Repairs and maintenance " (10,785) (4,882)
Others | (11,901) (7,928)
Tl (1,080,066) (929,049)
EBITDA \ (151,052) 13,304
(Forward) [
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LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHﬂ‘NSlVE INCOME

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Period Ended Mach 31

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) — Net
Depreciation and amortization

| (49,854) (68,092)
Finance expense (21,970) (66,601)
Foreign exchange gain (loss) - net (1,116) (1,402)
Finance income 21 26
Other income - net 4 901 4,040

(72,018) (122,029)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (223,071) (108,725)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 0 (1,309)
NET LOSS AFTER TAX (223,071) (110,035)
Equity Holders of the Parent Company (222,392) (125,608)
Non-controlling interest (679) 15,573
(223,071) (110,035)

Basic Earnings Per Share (0.0926) (0.0520)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (0.0926) (0.0503)
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Basic earnings per share is computed as follows:

(Amounts in thousand)

For the Three Months Ended March 31

Total Income (Loss) attributable to ordinary
stockholders of the Parent Company (a)

Adjusted weighted average

number of shares outstanding (b)

Basic earnings per share (a/b)

| 2022 2021
| (P223,749) (P125,608)
|
‘I 2,417,500 2,417,500
| (P0.0926) (P0.0520)

Diluted earnings per share is computed as follows:

|
For the Three Months Ended March 31

Total Income attributable to ordinary stockholders of
the Parent Company (a)

Adjusted weighted average number of shares
outstanding (b)

Effect of dilutive potential common shares* (c)

Adjusted weighted average number of shares
outstanding (d=b+c)

Diluted earnings per share (a/d)

12022 2021

‘. (P223,749) (P125,608)
‘l 2,417,500 2,417,500
‘ - 80,675
1‘ 2,417,500 2,498,175
. (P0.0926) (P0.0503)

* Adjusted for the convertible preferred shares.
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LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Amount In thousands)

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2022

Attributable to Owners of the Parent Company

Additional Foreign
Capital Stock Paid-in Retirement Currency Non-
Common Preferred Capital - Treasury Benefits  Revaluation Fair Value Translation Other Retained controlling
Shares Shares Common Shares Reserve Surplus Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Interests Total Equity
Balance at January 1, 2022 P2,444,107 £1,650,000 P4,276,691 (P1,703,951) P24,244 P- (P52,546) (P2,100) (P19,488) $2,726,309 P9,343,266 P341,303 P9,684,569
Net income (loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - (222,392) (222,392) (679) (223,071)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - - - = - - - - -
Total comprehensive income (loss) - = =
for the year - - - - & - = ————————— R (222,397 (679) (223,071)
Balance at March 31, 2022 P2,444,107 P1,650,000 P4, 276894 —(PLTONSST) — P24244 — (P52,548) (P2,100) (P19,488) P2,503,917 P9,120,874 P340,624 P9,461,498
{(In thousands) For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2021
Altributable to Ownars of the Parent Company
Additional Foreign
Capital Stock Paid-in Retirament Currency Non-
Commen Preferred Capital - Treasury Benefits Revaluation Fair Value Translation Other Retained controlling
Shares Shares Common Shares Reserve Surplus Reserve Reserve Reserve Eamings Total Interests Total Equity
Balance at January 1, 2021 #2417 500 #1,650,000 4,263,308 (P1.703,951) (P18,336) - £6,503 (P2,100) (P19.488) P£3,168,371 P9, 761,807 #397,205 P10,159,013
Net income (loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - (125,6808) (125,608) 15,573 (110,035)
Other comprehensive income (loss) = - - - - - - - = = = - -
Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year - - - - - - - - - (125,608) (125,608) 15,573 (110,035)
Redemption of preferred shares = = - - - = = = = = = - -
Balance at March 31, 2021 ©2,417 500 1,650,000 P4,263,308 (®1,703,951) (P18,336) - P6,503 (P2,100) (P19,488) P3,042,763 #39,636.199 P412.778 ®10,048,978
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|
LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)

Period Ended March 31

2022

2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Finance expense

Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net
Finance income

(P223,071)

49,854
21,970
1,116

(21)

(P108,725)

58,092
66,601
1,402

Operating loss before working capital changes
Increase in:

Receivables

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:

Trade and other payables

Private placement

Deposits

(150,152)

(32,906)
(56,190)

284,572
150,000
(6,926)

(26)
17,344

(12,864)
(19,832)

116,306

406

Cash generated (used) from operations
Interest received

188,398
21

101,360
26

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

188,419

101,386

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:

Investments and advances

Property and equipment

Other noncurrent assets

Investment properties

(331,358)
(22,679)
977

(3,956)
(310)
25,469

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(353,060)

(4,698)
16,505

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loans payable

Payments of loans payable

Payments of lease liabilities

Interest paid

190,046
(213,165)

(21 ,975;

23,000
(108,661)
(1,992)

Net cash used in financing activities

(45,089)

(65,319)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(209,730)

416,524

(152,972)
(35,081)

373,974

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

P206,794

P338,893
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LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORP@ATIdN AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
\

1. Reporting Entity "

|
Leisure & Resorts World Corporation (“LRWC" or the “Parent Company”) was registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 10, 1957. On
November 6, 2006, SEC approved the extension of the Parent Company'’s corporate life
until December 31, 2055. The accompanying consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group” and individually as “Group entities’) and the Group’s interest in joint
ventures and associates. |

|
The Parent Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities Regulation
Code (SRC) and its shares are listed on the Philippine \Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE).

|

The Group’s primary purpose is to engage in leisure business which includes management

and operation of the activities conducted therein pertaining to general amusement and

recreation enterprise, hotel and gaming facilities, including but not limited to bingo pariors.
\

The Parent Company's registered office address is located at 26™ Floor, West Tower, PSE

Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. ||
|

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Significant Accot«nting Policies

Basis of Preparation \
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared|on a historical cost basis, except
for the following items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

ltems Measurement bases

Financial assets at fair value through other .

comprehensive income Fair value ||

Investment properties Fair value |

Retirement benefits liability Present valL‘fe of the defined benefits obligation

\
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the Group's functional
and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest thousands (000), except

when otherwise indicated. I‘

Standard issued but not yet adopted
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the
Group does not expect that the future adoption of the sald pronouncements will have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the

following pronouncements when they become effective. \
|

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022 \

|
= Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1889, with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments added an| exception to the recognition
principle of PFRS 3, Business Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2’gains or
losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that wohld be within the scope of PAS



\
|
‘.
37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent A‘ssets or Philippine-IFRIC 21, Levies,

if incurred separately. |

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting périods beginning on or after January
1, 2022 and apply prospectively. |

Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment: Proce‘(lads before Intended Use

\
The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the dost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and
the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss. ||
The amendment is effective for annual reporting perion?s beginning on or after January 1,
2022 and must be applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity

first applies the amendment. |

The amendments are not expected to have a material i*npact on the Group.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Costs oﬁ Fulfilling a Contract

\
The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether
a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost
approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include
both incremental costs and an allocation of costs dir%tly related to contract activities.
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty\under the contract.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2022. The Group will apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. ‘
|
|
« Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of |Philippines Financial Reporting

Standards, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter |‘

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to alpply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS
1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the
parent, based on the parent's date of transition to PFRS. This amendment is also
applied to an associate or joint venture that elects to a{pply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS
1. |

|

The amendment is effective for annual reporting t‘)':ariods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The amendments are not expected to

have a material impact on the Group. |
|

« Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Feé‘s in the 10 per cent’ test for
derecognition of financial liabilities |
\
The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between
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the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other's behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in

which the entity first applies the amendment. ‘|

|
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2022 with earlier adoption permitted. The Group will apply the amendments
to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity !?rst applies the amendment. The
amendments are not expected to have a material "impact on the Group.

|
= Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in ffair value measurements
\
The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities
exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring|the fair value of assets within the
scope of PAS 41. |
|

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period b ‘ inning on or after January 1, 2022
with earlier adoption permitted. The amendments?e not expected to have a material
impact on the Group.

\
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023 |

\
Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction \

|
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recogpition exception under PAS 12, so

that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. |

i
The amendments also clarify that where payments that|settle a liability are deductible for
tax purposes, it is a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether

|
such deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the ﬁability recognized in the financial
statements (and interest expense) or to the related |asset component (and interest
expense). \

|
An entity applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented for annual rept#rting periods on or after January

1,2023. |

\
Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estkmates

The amendments introduce a new definition of accoulhting estimates and clarify the
distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
and I\

|
the correction of errors. Also, the amendments clarify that the effects on an accounting
estimate of a change in an input or a change in a measurement technique are changes in
accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors.

0=



An entity applies the amendments to changes in ?ccounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after January 1, 2023 with earlier adoption permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have a materiaii impact on the Group.
|
|
Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement‘-lz, Disclosure of Accounting Policies
\
The amendments provide guidance and exampiesﬂ to help entities apply materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:‘I
|
* Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies, and
+ Adding guidance on how entities apply the‘lconcept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures ||
|

The amendments to the Practice Statement provide noT-mandatory guidance. Meanwhile,
the amendments to PAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023. Early application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. The amendments
are not expected to have a material impact on the Groub.

|

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2024 |

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025 ‘

|
Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
The amendments clarify paragraphs 69 to 76 of PAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements, to specify the requirements for classifying Ii‘PbiIities as current or non-current.
The amendments clarify: ‘
|
«  What is meant by a right to defer settlement ‘I
+  That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
- That classification is unaffected by the likelihoad that an entity will exercise its
deferral right I
« That only if an embedded derivative in a conv‘?rtibie liability is itself an equity
instrument would the terms of a liability not impac?t its classification
|
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023 and must be applied retrospectively. Hil:owever. in November 2021, the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) tentatively decided to defer the effective
date to no earlier than January 1, 2024. '

PFRS 17, Insurance Confracts
|

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard fc*r insurance contracts covering

recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will

replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies

to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),

regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well| as to certain guarantees and

financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will
|

apply. ‘

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts
that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4,
which are largely based on grandfathering previous local ?ccounting policies, PFRS 17
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|

provides a comprehensive model for insurance contrq‘acts, covering all relevant accounting
aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is the general model, #iupplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts with direq“i participation features (the variable
fee approach)

» Asimplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts '

On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the m ‘ndatory effective date of PFRS 17
from January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025. This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-
62 issued by the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17
by two (2) years after its effective date as decided by tr\e IASB.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning|on or after January 1, 2025, with
comparative figures required. Early application is pern*itted.
|
|
|
Deferred effectivity \
|
= Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Skatements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assaciate or Joint Venture
The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the
loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture.
The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an
associate or joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that /does not constitute a business,
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated in»westors’ interests in the associate
|

or joint venture.
|

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standaﬁds Council deferred the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the IASB completes its
broader review of the research project on equity acﬁounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of| other aspects of accounting for

associates and joint ventures. \

Alternative simplified disclosures |

Following is an illustrative disclosure when the entity's manaéyement conclude that the future
adoption of the new pronouncements is not expected to hﬂve a significant impact on the
[consolidated] financial statements. |

|
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. [The Group intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when they become effective. Adoption of these pronouncements is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements

[unless otherwise indicated]. |

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022 |
\
=  Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

= Amendments to PAS 16, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
=  Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Costs of FuI;Iﬁng a Contract
= Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle w
« Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Ph}'lrppines Financial Reporting
Standards, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter I
< Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees% in the 10 per cent’ test for
derecognition of financial liabilities ‘

« Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in fair vaf&e measurements
|

R



|
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2023 \I
Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Asset#s and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction \
=  Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estmfz‘es
Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement

, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2024 ~‘

=  Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as qurrent or Non-current

|
Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025 ‘

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts |

\
Deferred effectivity |
|

Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Sti

tements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

|
These amendments may apply to future transactions of tre Group.

\
Current versus Noncurrent Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolldateb statement of financial position
based on current/noncurrent classification. \

|
An asset is current when: ‘

|
* t is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or co?sumed in the normal operating
cycle;

\
it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the|financial reporting date; or

it is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the financial reportipg date.

) |
All other assets are classified as noncurrent. \

A liability is current when: |

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; l‘
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; |
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the fi nancii

| reporting date; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of|the liability for at least twelve
months after the financial reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as noncurrent. \l

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, and net retirement assets and liabilities are classified as
noncurrent assets and liabilities, respectively.
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Financial Instruments — Initial Recognition and Subsequeht Measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. ||

a.

Financial Assets ‘

|
Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOC| and FVPL.
|

The classification of financial assets at initial recognitilil} depends on the financial asset’s

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s ‘ siness model for managing them.
|

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial a sets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The bt?giness model determines whether

cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. \

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivéry of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. |

The Group has cash, receivables, due from related parties, rental deposits and cash
performance bonds classified as financial asset at amortized cost. It also has investment

in equity securities classified as financial asset at FVOCI. ‘he Group has no financial asset
designated as FVPL. |

|
Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets
|

are classified in four categories: |

= Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments) ||

* Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments) ‘I

= Financial assets at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments) w

= Financial assets at FVPL ?

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments). TFpe Group measures financial

assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

|

= the financial asset is held within a business model with t‘yhe objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and |

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 1rinl::ipal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest

(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or

loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired. ||

Financial assets designated at FVOCI/ (equity instruments). l.ppon initial recognition, the
Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. '
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Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends
are recognized as other income in the consolidated thatement of comprehensive income
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the"financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments desigpated at FVOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment. .

|

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its listed equity investment under this category.

|

Derecognition. A financial asset (or, where applicable, ‘Ea part of a financial asset or part of

a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily derécognized (i.e., removed from the

Group's balance sheet) when: ‘.

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset havl? expired; or

* Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and (

s either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of tll'le asset.

|

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive gash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has r?either transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognize the transferred asse{ to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained. |

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could be required io repay.
|

Impairment of financial assets. The Group recognized an allowance from ECLs for all debt

instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the diffé_rence between the contractual

cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral hel

that are integral to the contractual terms.

or other credit enhancements

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the tif’ning of the default (a lifetime
ECL). *

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures f}é which there has not been a

For cash in bank, the Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs. The Group
recognizes a loss allowance based on ether 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on its cash in bank since initial
recognition. ‘,
|

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset

is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows. ‘
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Determining the stage for impairment. At each reporthhg date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) for financial assets since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of a default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this
purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information and forward-looking
analysis. An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If,
in a subsequent period, asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed
SICR since origination, then the loss allowance measurement reverts from lifetime ECL to
12-months ECL. |

\
Staging assessment. PFRS 9 establishes a three-stage approach for impairment of
financial assets, based on whether there has been SICR of a financial asset. Three stages
then determine the amount of impairment to be recognized.

= Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial instruments which have not
experienced SICR since initial recognition. Entities are required to recognize 12-month
ECL for stage 1 financial instruments. In assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly, entities are required to compare the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date, with the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition|
= Stage 2 is comprised of all non-financial instruments which have experienced SICR
since initial recognition. Entities are required to recognize lifetime ECL for stage 2
financial instruments. In subsequent reporting periads, if the credit risk of the financial
instrument improves such that there is no longer SICR since initial recognition, then
entities shall revert to recognizing 12-month ECL. ||
|
= Financial instruments are classified as stage 3 when there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial
recognition with negative impact on the estimated| future cash flows of a financial
instrument or portfolio of financial instruments. The ECL model requires that lifetime
ECL be recognized for impaired financial instruments, which is similar to the
requirements under PAS 39 for impaired financial ingtruments.
|
Financial Liabilities ‘
|
Initial Recognition and Measurement.  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedgve:,i as appropriate.

\
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

|
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other|payables, loans payable, lease
liabilities and deposits which are classified as loans and b‘ rrowings.

The Group has no financial liabilities at FVPL or derivative 'iabilities designated as hedging
instruments. |
Subsequent Measurement. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are dere#ognized as well as through the
EIR amortization process. |

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any dis ‘ unt or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
interest expense in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Derecognition. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an exisEng financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the sfatement of comprehensive income.

Classification of Financial Instruments between Debt and_(riqu]tv
A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for"a contractual obligation to:

= deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

= exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

= satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of la fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid | elivering cash or another financial

asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meet| the definition of a financial liability.

A financial instrument is an equity instrument only if: (a) the instrument includes no contractual

obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; and (b) if the instrument

will or may be settled in the issuer's own equity instrumenti‘, it is either:

= a non-derivative that includes no contractual obligation| for the issuer to deliver a variable
number of its own equity instruments; or

= a derivative that will be settled only by the issuer excHanging a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of its own eqtl:ity instruments.

The components of issued financial instruments that contailL both liability and equity elements
are accounted for separately, with the equity component béing assigned the residual amount
after deducting from the instrument as a whole or in part, thé amount separately determined as
the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.|

Offsetting Financial Instruments |

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Group
consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an interﬁion to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with
master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabillties are presented at gross in the
Group statements of financial position. |

Determination of Fair Value \
The Group measures a number of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value
at each reporting date. |

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset|or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the m asurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transacti?an to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

\
= In the principal market for the asset or liability, origin the ?bsence of a principal market, or
= In the most advantageous market for the asset or Iial:)il]tyW

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

|
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Group financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measnrrement as a whole:

= Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

= Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest le{el input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observabl

= Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest Ie\*el input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For purposes of the fair value disclosure, the Group has|determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. \

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets |

Prepaid expenses represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. These are
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are
recognized in profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of
time. These typically comprise prepayments for commissions, taxes and licenses and rental.

Prepaid expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of financial position as current
assets when the cost of goods or goods related to the prepaid expenses are expected to be
incurred within one year. Otherwise, prepaid expenses are ¢lassified as noncurrent assets.

|
Other current assets represent resources that are expected to be used up within one year after
the reporting date. These typically comprise advances to con;ractors and suppliers, input value-
added tax (VAT), playing cards, etc. ‘
Investments and Advances |
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture of the Group. Significant influgnce is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policies of the investee, but is na: control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is an entity over whose activities the Group) has joint control, established by
contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating
decisions, and over which the parties have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of gn arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
|

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control is similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries. I
The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures ar‘ accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements. Under the equity method, investments in
associates and joint ventures are carried in the consolidated statements of financial position at
cost plus post-acquisition changes in the share of net assets, less any impairment in value.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the cost of the insttments in associates and joint
ventures, the carrying amount of that interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associates and the joint ventures. The carrying amount of
the investments are adjusted to recognize the changes in the Group’s share of net assets of
the associates or joint ventures since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associates
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or joint ventures is included in the carrying amount of thé investment and is neither amortized
nor individually tested for impairment. ‘
The Group’s share in profit or loss of associates or joint \)pntures are recognized as "Equity in
net earnings of associates” and “Equity in net earnings of joint ventures” accounts, respectively,
in the profit or loss. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the e'rtent of the interest in the associates
or joint ventures.
|

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognize an impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the shares of stock
of associates or joint ventures. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investments in associates or joint ventures are impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Group recalculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount and carrying amount of the investment in shares of stock of associates
or joint ventures. Such impairment loss is recognized as part “Equity in net earnings of
associates” and “Equity in net earnings of joint ventures” accounts in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. |

|
Upon loss of significant influence over the associates or joint control over the joint ventures,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the investment in shares of stock of associates or joint ventures
upon loss of significant influence or joint control, and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss. |

|
The financial statements of the associates or joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies
in line with those of the Group. \
The Group normally contributes cash or other resources to lhe associates and joint ventures.
These contributions are included in the accounting records of the Group and recognized in its
consolidated financial statements as part of its investments ib associates and a joint venture.

Investments and advances also include advances to con*panies in which the Group has
positive intention of taking over these companies or having ownership interest in the future.

|
Property and Equipment \
Property and equipment, except land, is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Land is stated at cost less any |mpé|rment in value.

Initially, an item of property and equipment is measured at its cost, which comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing it to working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures that can be measured reliably are added to the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance, will flow to the Group.
All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred. .

\
Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost. This
includes the costs of construction and equipment and other direct costs. Borrowing costs that
are directly attributed to the construction are capitalized during the construction period.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time th%t the relevant assets are ready
for use. ‘
Effective January 1, 2019, it is the Group’s policy to r:[assifyI right-of-use assets as part of
property and equipment. Prior to that date, all of the Group!s leases are accounted for as
operating leases in accordance with PAS 17, hence, not recordgd on the statement of financial
position. The Group recognizes nght-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(ie., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are initially
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
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any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The initial cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs i}wcurred, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the! condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. ‘

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownersltip of the leased asset at the end of
the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of their estimated useful life and lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to
impairment. |

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life (EUL) of
the property and equipment over the following estimated useful lives:

i Number of Years

Leasehold improvements | 5 years or related lease
| term whichever is
| shorter

Aircraft and transportation equipment 5-15

Gaming equipment | 5

Office furniture and fixtures and equipment ‘ 5

Network equipment | 10

Condominium unit 25

Airstrip improvements* ‘ 10

Right-of-use asset | 1-25

*Recorded under “Other noncurrent assets” accou{:t

There are no changes in estimated useful lives in 2022 and 2021.

the asset is expected to be available for use. The Group initially assessed that benefit may be

The Group estimates the useful life of its airstrip improvemTt based on the period over which
derived from this asset over five (5) to fifteen (15) years.

|
The EUL and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expectedcgattern of economic benefits from
those assets.

\
When it is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated dePreciation and impairment losses,
if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain|or loss arising from the retirement
or disposal is reflected in the Group statement of comprehensive income.

\
Investment Properties -
Investment properties consist of land, land improvements, bdilding, or part of a building or both
held to earn long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied by
the Group or held for sale in the ordinary course of business

method, investment properties are initially measured at cost but are subsequently remeasured
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. The fair value of investment
properties is determined by independent real estate valuationrjexperts using cost approach and

\
The Group adopted the fair value model for accounting for its{vestment properties. Under this

sales comparison approach. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

|
Investment properties are derecognized when either those have been disposed of or when the
investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use %d no future benefit is expected
from their disposal. Any gain and loss on derecognition of investment properties is recognized
in profit or loss in the year of derecognition.
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Transfers are made to investment properties when, and Bnly when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencerﬁent of an operating lease to another
party. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change
in use, evidenced by commencement of the owner| occupation or commencement of
development with a view to sell. |
For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-
occupied properties become investment properties, the Group accounts for such properties in
accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in
use. When investment property that was previously classified as property and equipment is
sold, any related amount included in the revaluation is transferred to retained earnings.

|
Lease Rights |
The Group's lease rights pertain to acquired rights and interests in the sublease agreement
entered upon by the Group. Lease rights are accounted under Other noncurrent assets -
“Others” and stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment in value, if any and
is. Lease rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquiLsition method as at the acquisition
date. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggreg:%ate of the consideration transferred,
measured at acquisition date fair value, and the amount oflany non-controlling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group el%ts whether to measure the non-

controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included as part
of “Costs and operating expenses” account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. \

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the ﬁnal%cial assets and financial liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation irJ accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as|at the acquisition date.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the qicquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at the acquisition date
fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the \proﬁt or loss.
|

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: a) the fair value of the consideration
transferred; plus b) the recognized amount of any non—contro'ling interests in the acquiree; plus
c) if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest
in the acquiree; less d) the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. When the excess is hegative, a bargain purchase gain
is recognized immediately in the consolidated statements of income. Subsequently, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment in Ealue. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may be impaired. ‘

|
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with
the issuance of debt or equity securities that the Group incurs in connection with a business
combination, are expensed as incurred. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not
remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Ot;erwise, subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized “in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

|
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Goodwill
Goodwill acquired is initially measured as the excess of| the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree. When the resulting amount is negative (bargain purchase gain), it is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed|for impairment, annually or more
frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicawe that the carrying amount may be
impaired. |
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable a‘&nount of the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the goodwill relatels_ Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized.

Bargain purchase gain, which is the excess of the net l‘fzair values of acquired identifiable
nonmonetary assets of subsidiaries and associates over|the cost of acquisition, recognized
directly to profit or loss. |

\
When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the subsidiary’s net
asset plus goodwill associated with the investment are recognized in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. |
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's nonfinancial assets su.hch as property and equipment and
investments and advances and other noncurrent assets arq reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment.| If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of a nonfinancial asset is the greater of the asset's fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from
the sale of the asset in an arm'’s length transaction less co*ts to sell while value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be|generated from its disposal at the
end of its useful life. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate
cash flows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. A cash-generating unit is
the smallest group of assets that includes the asset and generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups|of assets.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognizeB. Reversals of impairment are
recognized in the Group statement of comprehensive income.

|
Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital ‘
Common and preferred shares are classified as equity. Incrﬁtmental costs directly attributable

to the issuance of common and preferred shares are recognized as a deduction from relevant
additional paid-in capital, and if none or insufficient, to be deducted from retained earnings, net
of any tax effects. Proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received in excess of par value
are recognized as additional paid-in capital. ‘
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Treasury Shares |
When share capital is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes

directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a deduction from equity.
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized
as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus on the transaction is transferred to additional
paid-in capital, while the resulting deficit is applied against additional paid-in capital and
retained earnings, for any excess of deficit over the additional paid-in capital arising from
treasury shares transactions. |

Revaluation Surplus ‘
Revaluation surplus pertains to accumulated gains and Ipsses to revaluation of LRLDI and
FCLRC'’s land. |

Fair Value Reserve |
Fair value reserve represents cumulative net change in Whe fair value of FVOCI, net of tax
effect, as at reporting date. |

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve ‘

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary with transactions denominated in currencies other
than Philippine peso are translated using the applicable closing exchange rates on the
reporting date. The income and expenses of the subsidiary with transactions denominated in
currencies other than Philippine peso are translated using the exchange rates at the date of
transactions. Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the “Foreign currency translation reserve” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Retained Earnings ‘
Retained earnings represents the cumulative balance gof periodic profit/loss, dividend
|

distributions, prior period adjustments and effect of changes in accounting policy and capital
adjustments.

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholder is recognized as a liability in the consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved and declared by the
Group’s Board of Directors. |

Revenue Recognition |

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized whah control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The Group has generally conclhded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goo‘ﬁs or services before transferring
them to the customer except for some entities of the Group which act as agent in certain
commission revenue arrangements. \

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met b%fore revenue is recognized:

Electronic Bingo and Online Traditional Bingo. Revenue frorp these bingo games are satisfied
at a point in time and are recognized upon conclusion of eacw game cycle. The revenues is net
of payments and share of machine vendors.

Electronic Gaming System. Revenue from these gaming sstem are satisfied at a point in time
and are recognized upon conclusion of each game cycle. The revenues is net of payments and
share of machine vendors.

Traditional Bingo, Rapid Bingo and Pull Tabs. Revenue from{these bingo games are satisfied
at a point in time and are recognized upon sale of bingo card#.

Service and Hosting Fees. Revenue from bandwidth and io-location services are satisfied
over time and are recognized as the services are performed. Service fees are satisfied at a
point in time and are recognized upon processing of IocatPrs' application for a franchise.
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Hosting fees are satisfied over time and are recognized upon accrual of the gaming levy to
locators based on their reported revenue as defined in thd license agreement.

One time set-up charges. The one time set-up charge is recognized over the term of the
contract.

Commission Income. Commission income is satisfied over time and is recognized when the
related services are rendered based on a percentage of eth PeGs’ casino winnings and gross
gaming revenue of the junket.

\

Other income. Other income comprises miscellaneous incﬁme from operations and recognized
at a point in time.

The following revenue streams are outside the scope of Plii'RS 15:

Rent Income. Income is recognized based on the percent?ge of the net wins (gross wins less
payouts).
|

Interest Income. Interest Income is recognized as it accrue’rs in profit or loss using the effective
interest rate method.
|
Contract Balances
Contract Assets. A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or

services transferred to the customer. [f the Group performE by transferring goods or services

to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable. A receivable represents the Group’s righdlto an amount of consideration that
is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required b?fore payment of the consideration
is due).

|

Contract Liabilities. A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the
payment is due, whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract. |

Costs and Expenses Recognition \

Costs and expenses are decrease in economic benefits during the accounting period in the
form of outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in
equity, other than those relating to distributions to equity participants. Costs and expenses are
recognized in profit or loss when they are incurred and are reported in the financial statements
in the periods to which they relate. |

Payouts represent payments to winners of traditional bindp games. This is recognized as

expense upon conclusion of the game. |

Leases \
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset. |
Operating Leases |
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the|lease only if one of the following
applies: |
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a. There is a change in contractual terms, other thrar: a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted,
extension was initially included in the lease term;

c. Thereis achange in determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset. |

unless that term of the renewal or

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall lcommence or cease from the date
when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d)
above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for ?cenario (b).

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease paym’Fnts are recognized as expense in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee Benefits |
Short-term Benefits ‘
The Group recognizes a liability, net of amounts already paid, and an expense for services
rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Group
to its employees include salaries and wages, social securit)ﬁ contributions, and other short-term
benefits.

|
Retirement Benefits Liability |
The Group’s net obligation in respect of its retirement| plan is calculated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their services
in the current and prior periods and the benefits are discounted to determine its present value.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date of long-term government bonds that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s Iiab*ities. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

\
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Grﬂup, the recognized asset is limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in {the form of reductions in future
contributions to the plan. ‘

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation or asset, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding interest), if any, are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The
Group determines the net interest expense or income on tt'q'e net defined benefit obligation or
asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net deﬁned benefit obligation or asset, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit obligation or asset during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related
to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss. \

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is| curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
retirement plan when the settlement occurs. |

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so thEt the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially ﬁ'om the amounts that would be
determined at reporting date. |

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Igwome tax is recognized in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recoghized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized directly‘in equity or other comprehensive
income.
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Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by t?e end of reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. |
Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial repor}ing purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes, and the carry forward tax benefits of the net operating loss carry-over
(NOLCO) and minimum corporate income tax (MCIT). Def%red tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

the related tax benefit will be realized. |
|

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred ta:'fes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Foreign Currency \

Foreign Currency Translations |

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. The| foreign currency gain or loss on
monetary items is the difference between amortized cost| in the functional currency at the
beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Nonmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign c#rrencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair
value was determined. Nonmonetary items in a foreign currdncy that are measured in terms of
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for
differences arising on retranslation of AFS financial assets, a financial liability designated as a
hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation that is leffective, or qualifying cash flow
hedges, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Foreign Operations \

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Philippine peso at exchange
rates at the reporting date. ‘

Foreign currency difference is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the
foreign currency translation gain (“Foreign currency translation reserve”) in equity. However, if
the operation is not a wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of the
translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation is
disposed of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount
in other comprehensive income related to that foreign opera:%n is reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining gontrol, relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. |

When settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payabI!F to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from
such a monetary item a-re considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation
and are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in “Foreign currency
translation reserve” in equity. |
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Segment Reporting

For purposes of management reporting, the Group is arganized and managed separately
according to the nature of the products and services proviged, with each segment representing
a strategic business unit. Such business segments are the bases upon which the Group
reports its primary segment information. |

Financial information on business segments is present?: in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements. The Group has one geographical segment and derives substantially of its
revenues from domestic operations.

\
Earnings Per Share (EPS) ,
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year, after giving retroac’pve effect to any stock dividends
declared during the year. |

Diluted EPS is consistent with the computation of the ba}ic earnings per share while giving

effect to all dilutive potential common shares that were outstanding during the period. Net
income attributable to common shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive poten#jal common shares.

Provisions |

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resoxzzces embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where apﬁropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. |

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Where the Group expects Ja provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the
reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. ‘

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolid?ried financial statements but are

disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is rer'pote. Contingent assets are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of econom[c benefits is probable.
|

Events After the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the conso?dated financial statements when

material. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and As%umptions

Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial ste‘tements in accordance with PFRSs
requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the amounts replprted in the consolidated financial
statements. However, uncertainty about these estimates, judgments and assumptions could
result in an outcome that could require a material adjustt'nent to the carrying amount of the
affected asset or liability in the future. Actual results‘ may differ from these estimates,
judgments and assumptions.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the period in which the estimates and

judgments ae revised and in any future periods affected. |

Information about critical judgments and estimates in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the Group financial statements is as
follows: |

Judgments \
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, which have the most significant effed on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

\
Fair Value Measurement. A number of the Group’s accoun&ing policies and disclosures require
the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with ré_spect to the measurement of fair
values. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) has the overall responsibility for overseeing all
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The CFO regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. | If third party information is used to
measure fair values, then the CFO assesses the evidence obtained to support the conclusion
that such valuations meet the requirements of PFRSs, iWcluding the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair Value of Investment Properties. The Group carries its ‘nves’sment properties at fair value,
with changes in fair value being recognized in profit or loss| The Group engages independent
valuation specialists to determine the fair value. For the investment properties, the appraisers
used a valuation technique based on comparable market da‘ta available for such property.

The fair values of the investment properties were arrived at using the sales comparison
approach for land and cost approach for buildings and landfmprovements.

Determination of Lease Term of Contracts with Renewal anp Termination Options — Group as
a Lessee. The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether
or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant
factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise Ether the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customization to the leased asset).

The Group did not include any renewal and termination optibns in determining the lease term
as these are not reasonably certain to be exercised.

\
Acquisition Accounting. The Group accounts for acquired businesses using the acquisition
method of accounting which requires that the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognized at the date of acquisition based on their respedfve fair values.

|
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The application of the acquisition method requires oénain estimates and assumptions
concerning the determination of the fair values of acquired intangible assets and property
and equipment, as well as liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. Moreover, the useful
lives of the acquired intangible assets and property and equipment have to be determined.
Accordingly, for significant acquisitions, the Group obtains assistance from valuation
specialists. The valuations are based on information available at the acquisition date.

Determination and Classification of Joint Arrangement. The Group determines a joint
arrangement in accordance with its control over the entity or joint operations rather than its
legal form. The Group’s investments in joint venture is structured in a separate incorporated
entity. The joint venture agreement requires unanimmt}t‘| consent from all parties to the
agreement for the relevant activities identified. The Group and the parties to the agreement
only have rights to the net assets of the joint venture through the terms of the contractual
arrangements. The Group has determined its involvement in joint arrangement and determined
that its investment is classified as joint venture. |

Hotel Enterprises of the Philippines, Inc. (HEPI) - Although the Group has 51% ownership in
HEPI, the shareholders’ agreement provides for equal representation in the board of directors
which in substance is similar to a joint venture arrangement.

Distinction Between Investment Property and Properiy and Equipment. The Group determines
whether a property qualifies as an investment property. In making its judgment, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets
held by the Group. Property and equipment generate cash flows that are attributable not only
to property but also to the other assets used for administrative purposes and rendition of
services.

If the portion cannot be sold separately, the property is accodnted for as an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the productior\ or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are
so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property. The Group considers
each property separately in making its judgment. The Grouplhas determined that the land, land
improvements and building are investment properties.
Estimates |
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sgurces of estimation uncertainty at
the financial reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existingrcircumstances and assumptions
about future developments however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are rFﬂected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Impairment of Goodwill. Goodwill is tested for impairmeﬁt annually. Determining the net
recoverable amount of assets requires the estimation of cash flows expected to be generated
from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. While it is believed that the
assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the consolidated financial
statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment losses
could have a material adverse impact on the results of operations.

The impairment testing of goodwill utilized significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) to
determine the value in use. |
The Group performs impairment testing of goodwill annually, The recoverable amount of the
cash generating units containing the goodwill is based on the value-in use which is determined
on discounting the future cash flows to be generated from\the continuing use of the cash
generating units. |
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Definition of Default and Credit-Impaired Financial Asséts. The Group defines a financial
instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the c,eﬁnition of credit- impaired, when it
meets one or more of the following criteria:

=  Quantitative Criteria. The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments, which is consistent with the Group’s definition of default.

= Qualitative Criteria. The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the
borrower is in significant financial difficulty. These are instances where: a. The borrower is
experiencing financial difficulty or is insolvent: b. Thé borrower is in breach of financial
covenant(s); c. Concessions have been granted by the Group, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty; or d. It is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

The criteria above have been applied to all financial instlmeents held by the Group and are
consistent with the definition of default used for internal credit risk management purposes. The
default definition has been applied consistently to model the probability of default (PD), loss
given default (LGD) and exposure at default (EAD) throughout the Group’s ECL calculation.

Simplified Approach for Trade Receivables and Due from Related Parties. The Group uses a
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. | The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various patron segments that have similar loss patterns. The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group
calibrates the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At every financial reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyze i

Grouping of instruments for losses measured on collective basis. For expected credit loss
provisions modelled on a collective basis, a grouping of eﬂf)osures is performed on the basis
of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures withﬁn a group are homogeneous.

Macro-economic Forecasts and Forward-looking Information Macro-economic forecasts is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future econ0mici conditions.

The Group takes into consideration using different macro-economic variables to ensure linear
relationship between internal rates and outside factors. Regression analysis was used to
objectively determine which variables to use. |

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and d[bfau]t and loss rates on various
portfolios of financial assets have been developed based oq‘ analyzing historical data over the
past 3 years. The methodologies and assumptions includinﬂ any forecasts of future economic
conditions are reviewed regularly.

Estimating Provisions and Contingencies. The Group, in tha| ordinary course of business, sets
up appropriate provisions for its present legal or constructiviobligations, if any, in accordance
with its policies on provisions and contingencies. In recoghizing and measuring provisions,
management takes risk and uncertainties into account. '

The Group has several tax cases at the Supreme Court and douﬂ of Tax Appeals. The Group’s
estimates of the probable costs for the resolution of these cases have been developed in
consultation with outside legal counsel handling the prosecution and defense of these matters
and are based on an analysis of potential results. The GrmLp currently does not believe that
the cases will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial statements. It is
possible, however, that the future consolidated financial ‘statements could be materially
affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of strategies relating to its
proceeding. As such, the Group has not recognized any prgvision as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021. |
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Leases - Estimating the IBR. The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
the lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to measure lease IiabTities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similariterm, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value {0 the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do
not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain edtity—speciﬁc estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

\
Impairment Losses of Nonfinancial Assets Other than| Goodwill. The Group assesses
impairment on nonfinancial assets such as property |and equipment, investments and
advances, airstrip improvements and lease rights when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.‘

The factors that the Group considers important which gould trigger an impairment review
include the following: j

= significant underperformance relative to the expecfted historical or projected future
operating results;
= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquirfd assets or the strategy for overall
business; and
= significant negative industry or economic trends. ‘
Determining the net recoverable amount of assets requires the estimation of cash flows
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets.
While it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable amounts and any resulting
impairment losses could have a material adverse impact o‘ the results of operations.
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, some of the retail and casino sites of the Group permanently
closed in 2020. Moreover, some of the Group’s debtors had a difficulty in paying the advances
made to them. These are the indicators of impairment identified by the Group in its property
and equipment and advances.
|

Estimating Retirement Benefits Liability. The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other
post-employment benefits as well as the present value of the pension obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each financial
reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, managemei}t considers the interest rates of
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected |duration of the defined benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality ’taLles for the specific country and is
modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific country.

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Grout reviews the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be afailable to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group also reviews the expected timing and tax rates
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upon reversal of the temporary differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly.
The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the forecasted
taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This FErecast is based on the Group's past
results and future expectations on revenues and expenses.

4. Cash ‘
2022 2021
Cash on hand and payout fund | peaj3s0 £47.015
Cash in banks 142,414 369,509
T
. P206,794 P416,524

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Interest income
recognized amounted to P21 in March 2022 and P26 in December 2021.

Payout fund pertains to the cash held by the cashier which is intended to pay for the prizes
of the winners of each traditional bingo game. This is replenished on a daily basis.

Cash on hand included the revolving fund held by the Cﬁ'\shier from each site, administration
department and finance department in head office.

5. Receivables |

‘ 2022 2021

Trade receivables ‘ £1,109,400 #1,072,511
Advances to third parties 98,802 98,802
Marketing support fund ‘ 27,373 27,373
Advances to stockholders 53,106 53,106
Current portion of: ‘
Advances to Binondo Leisure
Resources, Inc. (BLRI) | 40,078 40,078
Receivable from Total Consolidated
Asset Management, Inc. (TCAMI) ‘ 25,902 27,817
Receivables from concessionaires 11,263 11,263
Others | 62,480 57,998
I 1,428,404 1,396,615
Less allowance for impairment losses 472,125 472,125

P956,279 $924,490

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and gollectible within 30 days.

Advances to third parties
Advances to third parties consist mainly of funds provided‘ for a future project reimbursable
from the project partner. These advances are noninterest—ﬁearing, unsecured and collectible

on demand.
Marketing support fund |
Marketing support fund pertains to the reimbursable advi{ces made by the Group for the

promotional activities relating to e-bingo machine and e-games platform provider.
Advances to stockholders

Advances to stockholders are unsecured, noninterest-bea#ing advances and collectible on
demand.
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Receivable from TCAMI \

This is the current portion of the receivable from TCAMI rélated to the sale of the Group’s 50%
shares in TechZone Philippines, Inc. ‘
Others

Other receivables represent cash advances made to companies which are engaged in similar
gaming and amusement activities as the Group. Receivables from these companies represent

noninterest-bearing and unsecured advances for working capital purposes that are due within
one year.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

%

l

J 2022 2021
| '

|

Input value-added tax (VAT) P238,670 P238,160
Prepaid expenses 85,805 47,470
Advances to officers and employees | 40,010 34,644
Advances to contractors and suppliers 12,797 719
Creditable withholding tax (CWT) | 19,112 18,487
Others \ 4,313 2,036

[ 400,707 344,516
Allowance for non-recoverable input VAT | (231,617) (231,617)

i P169,090 P112,899

Prepaid expenses consist of prepaid rent, prepaid insnLrance on property and equipment,

health care benefits of employees and advances kor consultancy and professional
services. ‘

Advances to officers and employees are noninterest-peaﬁng, unsecured and subject to
liquidation within 12 months from the date granted oicollectible in cash upon demand.

Advances to contractors and suppliers are down payment to vendors that will be applied
against future deliveries of goods and performance of | services.
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7. Property and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

Office
Aircraft and Furniture, Right-of-use
Leasehold Transportation Gaming  Fixtures and Network Condominium Asset - office
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Unit space Total
Cost
December 31, 2020 R814 #1,395,572 ®284,648 RB1,101,941 R727,219 R348,951 R7,147 1,086,570 F4,952 862
Additions - 9,403 - 1,021 1,138 - - 94,240 105,800
Retirement/reclassification - - (2,000) (13,776) - - - - (15,776)
Disposal - - - - - - - (179,110) (179,110)
Derecognition = = = - - - -
——————Dgeember 91, 2021 ) 814 1,404,975 282,648 1,089,186 728,355 348,951 7,147 1,001,700 4,863,776
Additions - 1,588 - 19,929 14,510 - - - 36,027
Reclassification - (3,020) - - - - - - (3,020)
Disposal - - - - - - = - -
Derecognition - - - - - - - - -
March 31, 2022 814 1,403,543 282,648 1,109,115 742,864 348,951 7,147 1,001,700 4,896,783
Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization
December 31, 2020 - 1,318,742 200,261 506,338 707,932 225,784 6,100 419,160 3,384,317
Depreciation and amortization - 34,980 20,861 94,744 20,423 25,477 202 151,907 348,594
Lease concession - - - - - - - 96,268 96268
Reclassification - - (1,300) - - - - - (1,300)
Disposal - - - - - - - - -
Derecognition — - - - - - (155,873) (155,873)
December 31, 2021 - 1,353,722 219,822 601,082 728,355 251,261 6,302 511,462 3,672,006
Depreciation and amortization - 4,229 3,891 77,707 8,389 5,484 50 - 99,750
Lease concession - - - - - - - - -
Reclassification - - - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - - - - - -
Derecognition - - - - (56,407) - (856) - (57,265)
March 31, 2022 - 1,357,951 223,713 678,789 698,030 256,745 5,496 511,462 3,714,491
Net Book Value
December 31, 2021 E814 F51,253 R62,826 R488,104 — R97,690 F845 R490,238 1,191,770
March 31, 2022 R814 ®45,592 58,935 R430,325 R44,834 R92,206 R1,651 R490,238 1,164,595
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8. Investment Properties

This account consists of:

Land !

Land Improvements Building Total

January 01, 2021 10,383,686 916,?97 P224,560 #10,624,343
Additions 4,697 - - 4,697
Unrealized gains on ‘

changes in fair values

of investment

properties 8,172 (2,720) 10,289 15,741
December 31, 2021 10,396,555 13,377 227,044 10,064
Additions - - - -
March 31, 2022 #10,396,555 P13,377 P234,849 £10,644,781

9. Investments and Advances and Fair Value througl-q Other Comprehensive Income

Percentage ‘

Percentage
of | of
Ownership 2022 Ownership 2021
Investments }
Associates: ‘
Binondo Leisure
Resources, Inc. (BLRI)
Preferred shares £20,000 £20,000
Common shares 30% 1,200 30% 1,200
Insular Gaming Corp.
(Insular) ‘
Common shares 40% | 200 40% 200
| 21,400 21,400
Accumulated equity in |
net earnings: ‘
Balance at beginning of
year ‘ (822) 235
Share in net earnings |
(loss) of associates ‘ - (1,057)
_[r (822) (822)
Balance at end of |
period 20,578 20,578
Joint ventures:
HEPI 51% 750,938 51% 750,938
T
Accumulated equity in
net income: ‘
Balance at beginning of
year 91,973 346,675
Share in net income from
_HEPL el = (54,702)
291,973 291,973
Balance at end of [
period P1,Q42,911 1,042,911
(Forward)
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Percentage of Percentage
Ownership Mar 2022 of Ownership Dec 2021

Advances:
Cagayan Premium ‘
Ventures Development
Corporation (CPVDC)
and Cagayan Land
Property Development

Corporation (CLPDC) £1,026,371 P1,026,371
Land Owners 35,570 35,570
AB Fiber Corp. ‘ 26,697 26,697
Eco Leisure | 26,136 26,136
Others 826,508 474,772

1,941,282 1,589,546
Allowance for
impairment losses ) (426,017) (426,017)
1,515,265 1,163,329
Balance at end of ‘
period 2,558,176 2,226,818
Other investments - at
cost ‘ 557 557
P2,§58,733 B2,227,375

BLRI. BLRIis a 30%-owned associate of LRWC. ALRI was incorporated in the Philippines
and is engaged in the hotel and recreation business. It started commercial operations in
August 2003. ‘

On January 31, 2008, a provisional Grant of Authority was received by BLRI from PAGCOR
to operate a Bingo Boutique to cover traditional, electronic and new rapid bingo operations
and distribution/selling of pull tabs or break-open cards at the Binondo Suites Manila. On
October 24, 2008, BLRI’s bingo boutique started its commercial operations. In 2010, BLRI
ceased its bingo boutique operations and entered into an operating lease agreement with
PAGCOR as a lessor for the use of its gaming facilities and to Dragon Enterprises, Inc. for
its store space. In 2014, BLRI ceased its hotel operations and entered into an additional
operating lease agreement as a lessor with Chinatown Lai Lai Hotel, Inc.

Insular. Insular is a 40%-owned associate of ABLE. Insular was incorporated in the
Philippines and is engaged in providing amusement and recreation to the public in such
forms as, but not limited to, traditional, electronic a{d rapid bingo games.

HEPI. HEPI is a 51%-owned joint venture between LRWC and Eco Leisure. HEPI is
engaged in the hotel and recreation business. The management, supervision and control
of the operations, property and affairs of HEPI are vested in its BOD which consists of
three (3) directors each from LRWC and Eco Leisure, and one (1) independent director
nominated by both parties. Any decision is subject for approval of LRWC and Eco Leisure,
and each party cannot direct decision on their own.
On March 10, 2016, the Amended Articles of Incarporation of HEPI amending Article ||
Primary Purpose, Article IV extending the term of the corporate existence of HEPI to
another fifty (50) years from July 30, 2012.

Advances to Eco Leisure. The advances is in reilation to the joint venture agreement

between Eco Leisure and LRWC. The advances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and
due upon demand but not expected to be settled with one year.

The advances to Eco Leisure was fully provided with a valuation allowance amounting to
P26,136 as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Advances to CPVDC and CLPDC. This account pertains to the noninterest-bearing,
demandable advances made by LRLDI to CPVDC and CLPDC to finance the construction
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and development of the Cagayan Special EconorLic Zone and Freeport (CSEZFP) Airport
in Cagayan. CPVDC is a joint venture formed by CLPDC and Cagayan Economic Zone
Authority (CEZA). CPVDC and CLPDC are incorporated in the Philippines.

The agreement among LRLDI, CPVDC and CLPPC provides for the following terms and
conditions:
a. LRLDI agrees to invest funds or make aAvances into the Lal-lo Airport Project of
CPVDC through a convertible loan in favor of CLPDC of a maximum amount of
#700,000. CPVDC shall only use the advanc?} to finance its capital expenditures and
working capital requirements related to the construction, development of the airport;

b.  LRLDI shall have the right to convert, in vl«hole or in part, the outstanding amount
of the advances at the time of the conversion,| into new, unissued common shares of
CLPDC subject to mutually agreed conversion brice per conversion share;

c. CLPDC acknowledges and agrees that tHe advances will be directly received by
CPVDC; and

d. CLPDC shall execute a separate agreerrlent with LRLDI which provides for the
specific procedures and details of borrowing, execution of the conversion and or
repayment. T

The construction of the airportis in line with the Master Development Plan with CEZA within
the CSEZFP. LRLDI and FCLRC have significant operations within the CSEZFP which
will benefit from the construction of the airport. ‘

The construction of the airport was completed in 2014 and was upgraded in 2017. Upon
submission of all the requirements needed by the Cﬁvil Aviation Authority of the Philippines,
the airport received its first commercial flight in March 2018.

As at March 31, 2022, CLPDC and LRLDI have Lot executed the separate agreement
mentioned above. The Group intends to convert the advances into shares of stocks upon
consolidation and issuance of land titles.

properties account and the land committed where the airport was built, is part of the

The advances to CLPDC and CPVDC, including the land transferred to investment
investments committed in the Master Development|Plan under the license agreement.

Advances to AB Fiber Corp. On December 8, 201 1Lthe Group entered into an agreement
with AB Fiber Corp. for the subscription of 90,000 shares. In relation to this, deposits for

future stock subscriptions were made by FCLRC amounting to £9,000 as at March 31,
2022 and December 31, 2021. T

Other advances to AB Fiber Corp. amounting toi?22,697 as at March 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021 are non-interest bearing, unsegured and are settled upon demand.
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Financial Assets through Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the carrying value of the Group’s FVOCI
are as follows:

. 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year ] P53,582 P112,631
Unrealized gain (loss) during the year - (59,049)
Balance at end of year/period P53,582 P53,582

The market prices of DFNN common shares as at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021
are P2.84 and P2.45 respectively. l

Noncurrent receivables
This account consists of receivables from the following:

| 2022 2021
TCAMI ' P452,053 P452,053
| P452,053 P452,053

TCAMI. On November 4, 2019, the Group entered in % Deed of Absolute sale with TCAMI for
the sale of the Group's 50% share in TechZone Philippines, Inc. for a total consideration of
1,750,000 of which 1,000,000 was paid in cash whi‘l:; the remaining balance of 750,000 is
payable in 10 years with no interest. This transaction resulted to the derecognition of the
Group's investment in TechZone and recognition of loss on sale of an investment in the 2019
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. T

In 2018, the receivable from TCAMI of #700,000, net jof current portion amounting 50,000,
was discounted using risk free rate of 4.63%. As at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
the present value of the receivable from TCAMI amounted to P452,053 and is shown
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position of the outstanding amount is
recorded under “Noncurrent asset” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

2022 2021
Rental deposits P439,198 435,822
Cash performance bonds 402,446 403,950
Cash in bank - restricted 81,293 81,293
Premium on group pension plan ‘ 36,090 36,090
Performance cash deposits and betting
credit funds 32,450 32,450
Airstrip improvements - net ‘ 24,299 24 815
Input VAT 26,957 26,836
Utility and construction bond ‘ 5,936 5,147
Others 17,131 20,374

1,065,800 #1,066,777

l
T

Cash performance bonds pertain to surety bonds deposited with PAGCOR which are
refundable at the end of the period covered by the Lllcense

Performance Cash Deposits and Betting Credit Funljs

PAGCOR granted TGXI the privilege to establish, install, maintain, and operate PeGS. For
each PeGS, TGXI has a performance cash depositszvith PAGCOR amounting to 100,000
and maintains betting credit funds amounting to #100,000. Performance cash deposits and
betting credit funds are posted through Philweb Corporation (Philweb).

As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, performgnce cash deposits and betting credit
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funds amounting to 32,450 are reimbursable to Inter-active Entertainment Solutions
Technology (IEST), one of TGXI's existing service provider.

Others

Others consist of land held for contribution and creditable withholding tax. Land held for
contribution pertains to parcels of land named to the Group where the CZEZFP Airport in
Cagayan will be built. The Group intends to convert its advances to CLPDC which it will
eventually contribute the parcels of land to CPVDC.

11. Loans Payable

Short-term Loans

Payable Interest rates Maturity 2022
Local banks 5.07% - 6.50% | December 2022 P1,080,395
1,080,395

*subject to renewal

Long-term Loans

Payable Interest rates | Maturity 2022
Current Portion
Local banks 3.40% January 2023 P576,624
Noncurrent Portion ’
Local banks 8.00% - 10.00% January 2023 2,785,504
P3,362,128

12. Trade and Other Payables

2022 2021
Payable to:

Suppliers P327,676 #354,436
CEZA 223,642 206,137
PAGCOR ‘ 131,511 73,848
Government agencies 18,841 20,201
Rent payable 199,591 173,653
Contract liabilities 17,923 14,768
Finder’s fee 30,103 30,103
Output VAT 908 447

Accrued expenses and other payables: ‘
Dividends payable 175,387 175,387
Contracted services 181,657 177,096
Payable to machine owners 394,318 198,232
Interest payable 100,339 96,577
Salaries, wages and benefits ‘ 11,385 23,955
Utilities 31,550 21,248
Professional fees 17,574 16,107
Customer deposit ‘ 6,692 6,833
Others N 49,372 44,868
£1,918,469 #1,633,896

Payable to suppliers pertains to various supplies expense in relation to the Company’s
bingo operations. These are normally settled withi; one year.

Payable to PAGCOR includes franchise fees that Te remitted twice weekly.

Payable to government agencies pertain to payments for final withholding taxes and other
regulatory agencies that are expected to be settled with one year.
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Payable to machine owners pertains to owners’ share for the use of bingo machines and
are payable on a 30-day credit terms. i

13. Business Combination and Goodwili |

Goodwill from business acquisitions within the GrcTup are as follows:

. 2022 2021
Cost ‘
Balance at beginning of year £1,329,092 #1,502,069
Additions — —
Balance at end of year ‘ 1,329,092 1,502,069
Accumulated Impairment Losses - 172,977
Carrying Amount , £1,329,092 £1,329,092

The Group recognized an allowance for impairment loss on the goodwill of its several bingo
units amounting to nil in March 2022 and in March|2021.

The goodwill from the acquisitions have been subjected to the annual impairment review
in 2021. The recoverable amounts of the operations is based on VIU calculation using the

cash flow projections approved by management. The cash flow projections cover five years
from the date of impairment review.

The recoverable amount of goodwill from the acquisitions of the bingo units was determined
based on VIU calculations using actual past results and observable market data such as
growth rates, among others. The onset of the CO ‘ID-19 pandemic has heavily impacted

the bingo operations of the Group, with this, the computed carrying amount of the goodwill
and cash generating unit to which the goodwill to re'l.;tes exceeded its recoverable amount.
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14. Related Party Disclosures

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or under common control with
the Group, including holding companies, and fellow subsidiaries are related entities of the Group. Associates and individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including
directors and officers of the Group and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute

related entities.

All publicly-listed and certain members of the companies of the Group have Material Related Party Transaction Policies containing the approval
requirements and limits on amounts and extent of related party transactions in compliance with the requirements under the Revised SRC Rule 68 and

SEC Memorandum Circular 10, series of 2019

The Group's significant transactions and balances with related parties follow:

Amount of
Nature of Transactions Due from
Category Transaction Year for the Year Related Parties Terms Conditions
Individual stockholder Cash advances 2022 P- P- Demandable; Unsecured; no impairment
non-interest bearing
2021 - -
Advances to affiliates Cash advances 2022 P P157,156 Demandable; Unsecured; no impairment
non-interest bearing
2021 2,156 157,156
Total 2022 P- P157,156
Total 2021 2,156 157,156

Advances to affiliates consist mainly of advances for working capital requirements to Cyberpoint Holdings and Management Corporation (CHMC), a holding
company which owns 3.7% of LRWC's outstanding shares.
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15. Segment Information ‘
The Group operates in four (4) reportable businias segments namely: the online group,
casino group, retail group and investment group, and only one (1) reportable geographical
segment which is the Philippines. The descriptirn of the reportable segments are as
follows:

Casino
The casino group is involved in hotel operation a%d casino marketing, junket operations,
and arcade leasing.

Network and License

The online segment’'s primary activity is licensing of operators engaged in interactive
gaming, as well as the establishment and setup of all the gaming infrastructures required
in connection with the development, operation and conduct of internet server,
telecommunication network, gaming enterprises, and other systems facilities.

Retail

The retail segment consists largely of venues providing amusements and recreation to the
public in such forms as, but not limited to, traditional, electronic and rapid bingo games.
And with the acquisition of TGXI in July 2014, this business segment now currently includes
PEGS offering online casino games. Multiple sites include Bingo Halls located in large
popular malls, while Bingo Boutiques and eGames Stations are situated in strategic
commercial establishments across the country.

Property
The property segment consists of an economic iPterest in one of the integrated resort

operators in the Entertainment City and an investment in a joint venture property
development project engaged in building a world-class Business Process Qutsourcing
center with offices for various locators.
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Analysis of financial information by business segment as of March 31, 2022 follows:

(In thousands) Casino Group L’:::t::;rg?:gp Retail Group Property Group Others Eliminations Consolidated
Segment Result

Gross Profits 37,294 27,455 (44,771) 6,239 0 - 26,216
EBITDA 29,157 17,790 (138,529) 1,024 (60,495) - (151,052)
Net Income (loss) before tax (1,684) 8,223 (164,268) (2,222) (63,121) - (223,071)
Other Information -

Segment assets 722,815 3,723,677 10,090,229 15,058,253 11,472,770 (22,291,556) 18,776,186
Segment liabilities 882,437 2,715,597 10,862,204 9,602,207 5,201,182 (19,948,939) 9,314,688
Capital expenditures 1,410 - 21,269 - - - 22,679
Depreciation and amortization (26,520) (10,632) (12,223) (243) (236) - (49,854)

There were no intersegment sales recognized among reportable segments in 2022. Unallocated corporate expenses consist of net operating expenses of the
Parent Company. Assets of the individual segments mainly comprise investments and advances, due from related parties, property and equipment, and trade
receivables. Liabilities of the individual segments include loans payable, trade and other payables, retirement benefits liability, and due to related parties. Capital
expenditures on noncurrent assets represent additions to property and equipment and investment properties. Noncash expenses pertain to depreciation and
amortization expense attributable to reportable segments.
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16. Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectivjs and Policies

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

=  Credit Risk
= Liquidity Risk ‘
=  Market Risk

This note presents information about the Group's‘exposure to each of the above risks,
the Group's objectives, policies and processes far measuring and managing risks, and
the Group's management of capital.

The main purpose of the Group’s dealings in financial instruments is to fund their
respective operations and capital expenditures. The Group is not actively engaged in
the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write options.

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s
risk management framework. The BOD has established the Executive Committee,
which is responsible for developing and monitaring the Group’s risk management
policies. The Executive Committee identifies all issues affecting the operations of the
Group and reports regularly to the BOD on its activities.

The BOD has a Risk Oversight Committee which responsible for overseeing and
managing risk that the Group may encounter. They develop proper strategies and
measures to avoid or at least minimize such risk incorporating the Group’s established
risk management policies. I'y

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. All risks faced by the
Group are incorporated in the annual operating budget. Mitigating strategies and
procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as not to affect
the Group's operations and forecasted results. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The BOD constituted the Group’s Audit Committee to assist the BOD in fulfilling its
oversight responsibility of the Group's corporate governance process relating to the:

a) quality and integrity of the Group’s financial statements and financial reporting
process and the Group’'s systems of internal accounting and financial controls;
b) performance of the internal auditors; c) annual independent audit of the Group’s
financial statements, the engagement of the independent auditors and the evaluation
of the independent auditors’ qualifications, independence and performance; d)
compliance by the Group with legal and regulatory requirements, including the Group'’s
disclosure control and procedures; e) evaluation o'L management’s process to assess
and manage the Group’s enterprise risk issues; and f) fulfillment of the other
responsibilities set out by the BOD. The Audit Committee shall also prepare the reports
required to be included in the Group’s annual report. The results of procedures
performed by Internal Audit are reported to the Audit Committee. On the other hand,
the Audit Committee reports all the issues identiﬁe? over the financial reporting of the
Group to the BOD on a regular basis.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Group would incur if customers and
counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Group manages its
credit risk mainly through the application of transaction limits and close risk monitoring.
It is the Group’s policy to enter into transactions wrh a wide diversity of creditworthy
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counterparties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk. Further, the
Group has regular internal control reviews to| monitor the granting of credit and
management of credit exposures.

The BOD has established a credit policy undel{ which each new advanced amount
requested by customer/counterparties within the same gaming industry is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before standard credit terms and conditions are
granted. The Group's review includes the requirements of updated credit application
documents, credit verifications through the use of no negative record requests and list
of blacklisted accounts, and analyses of financial performance to ensure credit
capacity. The status of each account is first checked before advances are approved.

and losses have occurred from time to time. Results of credit reviews are grouped and
summarized according to credit characteristics, such as aging profiles and credit
violations.

Most of the Group's customers have been transa:Ting with the Group for several years,

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate
of incurred losses in respect of receivables. The|main components of this allowance
are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a
collective loss component established for groups Lf similar assets in respect of losses
that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is
determined based on historical data of payment sratistics for similar financial assets.

As at reporting date, there were no significant corfentrations of credit risk.

Based on historical default rates, the Group believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of receivables not past due or past due by up to 60 days.

Rental Deposits l

The management prefers well known business| establishments in the selection of
location for bingo operations to ensure profitable jperations and recovery of the rental
and other deposits upon termination of the lease dagreements.

Cash Performance Bonds/Performance Cash DeTsits and Betting Credit Funds

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is negligible as PAGCOR has sufficient funds to
settle these upon the expiration of the respective license agreements.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is negligibb as this pertains to the Group's
investment in DFNN's shares that are listed on the| PSE.

Due from Related Parties

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only financing the operations of related
parties that have viable operations and likewise engaged in gaming amusement
activities.

The most significant amount of due from related parties of the Group are the advances to
BLRI and HEPI, an associate and a joint venture, resﬁectively, of the Parent Company.
The credit quality of the Group’s neither past due nor impaired financial assets based
on their historical experience with the corresponding third parties has been defined as
follows:

= Grade A: Financial assets which are consistedtiy collected before maturity.

= Grade B: Financial assets which are collected on their due dates even without an
effort from the Group's to follow them up.

= Grade C: Financial assets which are collected on their due dates provided that the
Group’s made a persistent effort to cfliect.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk pertains to the risk that the Grou'f will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or

another financial asset.

The Group manages liquidity risk by forecasting projected cash flows and maintaining
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. Treasury controls and
procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to cover daily
operational and working capital requirements.| Management closely monitors the
Group’s future and contingent obligations and |sets up required cash reserves as
necessary in accordance with internal requirements.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, and other market prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of
its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return.

The Group is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in prices,
interest rates, currency exchange rates and equity price risk.

Change in Prices

The risk from price changes relates to the Group's ability to recover higher selling costs
through price increases, which may be limited due to the regulated environment that
exists in the Philippine gaming market and the willingness of players to purchase the
same volume of bingo cards at higher prices. The Group’s most significant exposure
arises from increase in rental rates of leased premises in commercial establishments.

The Group minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in rental rates by entering into
contracts with lessors with fixed rent commitment|for the contract duration.

Foreign Currency Risk |

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than the Philippine peso, mostly in U.S. dollar ($). In respect of
monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other that the Philippine peso, the
Group ensures that its exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

There is no other impact on the Group's equity other than those affecting the profit or
loss. ‘

Equity Price Risk |

Equity price risk is such risk where the fair values of investments in quoted equity
securities could decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual stocks. The management strictly monitors the movement of the
share prices pertaining to its investments. The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of investments held by the Group, which are classified in the
consolidated financial position as financial agsets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. T

Fair Values
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments:

Cash/Receivables/Due from Related Parties/Rental Deposits/Cash Performance
Bonds/Performance Cash Deposits and Betting Credit Funds/Trade and Other
Payables/Due to a Related Party/Deposits

The carrying amounts of cash, receivables, due from related parties, trade and other

payables and due to a related party approximate their fair values due to the relatively
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short-term nature of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts of rental
deposits, cash performance bonds and performance cash deposits and betting credit
funds approximate their fair values as management believes that the effect of
discounting cash flows from these instruments is/not significant.

Loans Payable

Loans are reported at their present values, whichlapproximates the cash amounts that
would fully satisfy the obligations as at reporting date. The carrying amount
approximates fair value since the interest rates are repriced frequently. These are
classified as current liabilities when they become payable within a year.

Obligations under Finance Lease

Obligations under finance lease approximate their carrying amount since the Group
does not anticipate that the effect of discounting using the prevailing market rate is
significant.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
is based on the quoted market price of the investment in equity as at March 31, 2022.
The fair value is under Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Capital Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
shareholders’ investment and maintain high growth by applying free cash flows to
selective investments. The Group sets strategies with the objective of establishing a
versatile and resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The BOD monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating
income divided by total shareholders’ equity. The BOD also monitors the level of
dividends to shareholders.

The BOD seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the}advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position. The Group defines cadital as equity, which includes capital
stock, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings. There were no changes in the
Group's approach to capital management as at March 31, 2022. The Group is not
subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.
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LEISURE & RESORTS WORLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Financial Soundness Indicators
As of March 31, 2022 and 2021

Share

Weighted Average Shares
Outstanding**

Key Performance |
Indicator Formula 2022 2021
Current Ratio Current Assets 39.32% | 49.30%
Current Liabilitie
. ; Total Liabilities = &
Debt to Equity Ratio Stockholders' Equity 98.45% | 85.20%
t
: . Total Assets J -
Asset to Equity Ratio Stockholders' Equity 198.45% | 185.20%
Return on Average Net Income™ 8 G
Equity Average Stockholders’ Equity [ERed) | (EA0%
Return on Average Net Income* 4 &
Assets Average Total Assets (A% [} 2905
. ___Net Income* + Depregiation* " o
Solvency Ratio Total Liabilitied (1.85%) | (2.40%)
. Income Before Interest & Tax™
Interest Coverage Ratio Interest Expendb (10.17) (1.60)
Net Book Value Per Stockholders’ Equity 3.91 4.90
Share Weighted Average Shares . )
Outstanding
Income Attributable to/ Ordinary
; y Stockholders of the Parent
Basic Esir:r'ggs Per Company (0.0926) | (0.052)
Weighted Average Shares
Outstanding
Income Attributable to Ordinary
Diliited Eétrings Per Stockholders of the Parent
g Company (0.0896) | (0.0503)

*Annualized for quarterly reporting.
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